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To my beloved Family:

This is G. Grant Staples speaking to his Children and Grendchildren about some of
the things that means most to me in my life. L em proud of my hertiage and indeed:prowd
of my famly. They have brought thegreatest satisfaction and joy and happiness into
mine and ny beloved wife Ermas lives. My greatest personal possession is a testimony
and knowledge that God our Father in Heaven is reel and lives and we cen cormunicate
wrth Him through prayer. That Jesus Christ is His Son, our Elder Brother, our Savier
and Redeamer and advociate with our Father in lieaven. That the Father and His Son
Jesus Christ appeared to Joseph Smth and the Gospel of Juses Christ was restored
through the Prophet Joseph Smith. L know this Cospel is true and only through its
ordances and living the prineiples and ecommandments can we cbtain Eternsl Life, lts
prineiples can help us in our daily lives.

Uur destiny is in our own hands, our free agepy gives us the privilage to make
our own decisions, and the eritiesl thing is in how we make these deecisions. We can
meke them on our own, or with Divine help and help from our Parents or Llders. We are
required at times to make snap decisions, btut Lf we are liwving for it we cen receive
help. The process to help us meke good decisions 15 found in the Doctrine & Covenants
Seec, 9 VS 8, 3atan wvill try to influence our thinking.

The lives our Children ere living gives Zrme and I a lot of good feelings toward
them =nd their spouses for the wey they ere tesching and bringing up our Grandehildren.
Learning obedience is one of the most irportant things we ¢en zeguire in life.
Ubedience to our Lord and Saviors teschings, obedience to our Parents, to ocur teaechers,
our employers and to our own goals and asparetions. Learning to work is another good
habat to acguire, and learring to like to work and accomplish sorething worth while.

l em greteful ny Parents and Grandparents taught me the val e of obadience and
work in my youth, and durmang my life time by working with people and working wath
amimals 1 have found how wvaluable these thangs are, [y experience witi Bnuals and
the Laws of nature in the wide open Speces has alse taugnt me apoul voedience and work.

A horse or & dog is not of rueh value if 1t 15 not obedient and won't work. I hawve

reised and owned some very good horses and dogs in my life time, and 1t 15 & challenge



to teach and get them to respond to your wents end needs, After some treining L have
had very fev animals that wouldnt respond tc being obedient and work, but those that
would 'nt had ne plece on our family farm.

1 am grateful my Farents tzught me the value of being honest and-seek to be honorable,
Lf & person is not honest in his deelings and doesn't tell the truth he loses his honor
and respect and trust emcng his friends and acquantences.

What L have acquired and accomplished durning my life time L give credit to the
help of my wife Erme,children Max, Connie &and Dee and my parents for giving me a good
start. i have found the herder yom struggle for a pood thing and acquire it the more you
can appreciate it. Easy come easy po does't bring appreciation,

Appreciation 1s a good thing to leern &nd apply. Appreciation to our Father in
neaven for the plen of life and salvaeticn, for this beautiful earth le provided for
us, the handy work of His Son our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ in the crestion of
this earth and the beauly there in. For the part our first Parents /dam end Eve hed
in thas great plan. For the great atoning secrifice our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ
made for mankind, for Him taking upon lmself our sins and the sins of the world
and for Him giving his life to redeam us from death. For the privilege of coming to
earth st this period in time when the Cospel has been restored in 1ts fullness, when
there 1s so much enlighterment and convemiences here for the good of mankind. For the
privilege of being born of goedly Farents under the lew and sverlasting covenent of
the Gospel. We should &ll be grateful for whet our Parents have provided for us. For
the start in life they gave us, for nurturing us through infancy and starting us on
the road to make a good life for ourselves. Appreciation and gratitude enriches our
own lives and the liwes of others.

iy greatest asset is my lovely and devoted wafe Erme and cur three outstanding

children, Max G., Connie and Dee M. and our lovely Grandchildren. I know 1 cen not

reach sternal life and Zxaltation without them.

With gretitude, appreecistion and Love,

i = ﬁ: 23 far /987
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HIOGRAFHI OF GEORGE TUNLS STAPLES
written by his son CGeorge Cront 3Staples

CGeorge Tunis Staples was &n outstanding Livestock Man, Rancher and Family ran.

He was known by ranchers and livestock men throught Utah, ldaho, Oregen and Wyoming.
He bought herds of sheep, horses, herford bulls and buck sheep in these states.

He was known for his honesty, and admired for his wey of life end his sense of
justice 1n dealing with his fellow men. Ee was not enly~e good=judge.of livestsel! bat
of men also. He rarely become angry end hed great petience with with his femaly ~nd
his [ellow men.

He had an uncanny knowledge of the renge land he was envolved with which took in
severel towmships. He knew how the sections were laid out and where most of the
corner margings wvere located. He had studied the maps and reteined this informaticon
in his heed and c¢could tell you the numbers of the sections and where they ley,

ke tried to teach this inforwation to his scns and Matt browning but 2t dadn't
sank in to well, L heve ridden horse back with Father when he wes showing other
ranchers where some of their corner sections were and where the ssction lines were
laad out.

Father wes a diplomat and arbituretor and on occasion had to dischergeimen, it
he dad it in & way that meny came back and asked for a job later.

Fatlier seemed to always be in ecommand 1n any situation and didn't back down ffom
challenges. He wes firm in his convietions and very just.

L am grateful for noble parents and what they did for me. First for the praivilage
of being born in the New and Everlasting Covenent, &nd having a feeling of love
and securily in our home; lesrning to prey at my Mothers knee ard taking my turn
sgying the femily prayer, kneeling et the breakfast teble with the cheirs turned
with the backs to the table.

1 know Father was 2 praying men because | have scen him on his knees in secret
prayer before retiring et nipht. Mever did 1 hear Father profane or use sbusive
languege, or did L ever see him drink tea or coffes or liguor. He not enly taught

honesty and good living but practieced it.



in writing this bioprephy of Father it i1s reguirang livang in the past as 1 do
not haven written record to acconplish tmis. Seversl pictures taken by lrs
Dorthes Hrowning and her son ¥att while Father was working for them and xept
oy Motner, and a few pietures texen by Jinmy the basco while Fatherwas working
for Welter J. lindsay helps somewhat to bring to mind some of the things that
heppened during those times. Many of the thangs I write are as 1 remember them
ond as told by my parents.

George Tunis Staples was born 5 Feb., 1556 in Mesa, Maricopa Gounty, frizonia,
the third child and sldest living son of James Tunis and RButhetta Gardner Stenles
at that time,

in & Mesa news paper clipping "Mesa's Fast" obtained by my son Dee while he was
attending Arizone State University tells of two George Staples families, father
end son, the Thomes Stapley and iubsrs families coming to ssttle in 'esz Arizone.
It tells of Ceorge Staples S5r. later giving some land for the building of & little
red school house. This would heve to be my CGreat CGrandfather Ceorge Staples and
his oldest son George Ammon Staples who lived there. James Tunis, my Grandfaother,
the second son of George and Lauretts Happleye Staples, married Huthetta Gardner
the 14 Dec 1881 1n the St George Temple, Washington Gounty Utah. Suthetta Gardner,
my Grandmother was born 25 Dec 1884 et Willow Creey, Jusb County Utah. Their first
child Tunis was born 3 Sept 1882 at Inverury, Seveir County, Uteh but died shortly
after birth.

James Tunis and Ruthetta must have soon thereafter moved to lMesa Arzonia where
his father Ueorge and his brother George Ammon and other femilies had been sent by
F resident Brighem Yeung to help settle Mesa.

In the history of his life, H. William Staples an uncle of Fathers, tells of the
trip to Mesa Arizone and their encounter wath the indians. They left on this trip
the latter pert of Nov. 1881.

Lauretta kllen was born 31 jug 1883 and George Tunis born 5 Feb 1886 at Mesa.
The next child Joseph Levi was born 20 Dec 1587 at Thisttle, Seveir Couniy, utah.

Jenette was born 2 Dec 1889 at Central, Sevier County, Uteh. Carl Joshua was born
1 Hov 1881 at Annebelle, Sevaer County, Utah and ilys was born 15 Sept 1594 at
2
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8t zlsinore Sevaier County, litah,

i ifter & few years due to tie extreme heat of the Mesa ‘rizoniz sw ners 2nd health
reasons the Staples [emilies moved ferther North and ended ur in glsinor, 3evier
County, Utah, Fatiers mother iuthetts Gardner Stosles at tie age off thirty two

died 21 May 1896 at Elsinore, lesving a Young frrily of six childre;.. Fatier was
ten yeers old being the oldest son, at.er end his Lrother farl wert to live with
their Unele Joseph Leva (Lee) ond /unt ratelda B, inderson Starles et slsinor,

Fether receaved some good treining by his parents end olten spoke of his “other,
He 8lso received some good tra:ning while living wath Unele Lee end Junt Tillie.
¥atier learned early how to hencle horses and catile. .e beceme the cormunity
cow herder. L1t was the custom to have the cows gathered ecch morming by a cow
herder end graze them in the foot hills canyons for the dey end return ther to
renchers and farmers at night. Fatier recognized as & reliable herder.hed-thdt.job
for scme time. Une of the stories Father told was about one of his unc¢les, | am
not sure, but thought it was Frenk, one of the Yyounger boys of George Stanles,
who got & little roudy one night and began riding his horse in and out of the
seloon, Fether was standing among the spectutors and Frank rode by and picked him
up and swung ham in behind the saddle; the horse started to buck, but Frank ield
him on and furnished some excitement for the crowd. Some one went for the Sheraiff
but before he got there Frank was long gone,

Father alway talked about Uncle Lee,Aunt Tillie end how good they were to him
and Carl. une fell Lrma and L toox & trip to Zions Farx and stoped in =Zlsinore
end inquired sbout Aunt Tillie Steples. The store keerer in Elsinore, a relative
directed us to her home. She was living with her deughter Anne Laure and husband
who hed lived in California end moved to Elsinore for retirerent. Aunt Tillie
was in her nineties, but remembered Father very well,and said he wes an obedient
and quite boy. “e had attended school throuph the fourih grade,

Jemes Tunis bought & farm near idaho Falls and roved his family there. When
Father was about seventeen he inguired &t the Landsay-litton feed yard at ldsho
Falls for work. Lewis Bitton told hm he was rather young and smell for that

¥ind of work, but Fether ssked for a chrnce to prove himself. lew hired hir: and
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gave ham e black team of horses to drive for feeding cettle in the feed lot,
it wasn't long unt1l Father proved himself. He was an early starter, kept his
horses fat and shiney and the harneses clesn and oiled. He told me one of his
secrets of having his horses shining was rubbing them down with a kerosene rag
every morning after currying them.

Une day Walter J. Lindsay from Ogden Utah, co-owner of the feed yerd wes looking
the operation over and noticed Father at work., He was impressed with the way
Fether handled his teen and the way they looked. Walter J. inquired of Lew Fation;
"who waz that young Man drivang that shiney black tear 2" Lew told Walter J.
the story and seid he was a good men. Walter J. needed & men with his sheep oper-
#tion and got his pertner Lew to let him offer Father a job with the sheep.
Father accepted and ecame to Uteh to work for Welter J. Lindsay. It wasn't long
until he became foremen for W, J's sheep operation.

&t the peak of the landsay Land & Livestock Company operation they run as many
&5 twenty two bends of renge sheep or about 65,000 hesd. | remember Lewis Bitton
end two of his sons, Willard and Lewis Jr. who were about the seme age as Father.
George Bitton, a brother to Lewis Bitton Sr. lived in West Weber, Weber County
Uteh and our famlies were well acquainted with ezch other. Lewis Bitton Jr.
died Deec 1980 at Graee Lldaho. lie and my brother Claude dealt together in the
cattle business.

Hﬁltar J. landsay's oldest son Clyde W. was sbout the ssme sge ss Father and
they worked together for W. J, Clyde wrote a autobrography of his Father entitled
"Daddy Landsey" and & collection ealled "Tell us & Stery™ in which he mentions
Father meny times. Some of the thangs he mentions in these two books brinpgs bock
to memory some of those happenings as Father had related them to his femily.

Walter J. lindsay contrelled a lerge empire and Fether end Mother were enveolved
in this operation. W.J,'s holdings included the Zden Hanch, 4-Mile iench Birch
Creek iwmnch, Connor Springs ianch, Fromotory Hanch, Blacksmaith Fork Saw }ill,
Wilson Lane Feed Yard, ldeho Falls Feed Yard,Garland Feed Yerd, Ugden Wood Yard,
Washington Mest larket, and Elite Market.

His ranches contained 3085 seres of irrigaied land snd 7455 acres of dry farnm,
A



&3,514 acres of renge land and 100,617 acres under lease connected to the owned
lend. There wa an estimated fifteen million boerd feet of standing timber connected
to the Blacksmith Fork Saw Mill. At the height of the company operation they had
twenty twe bands of sheep, three thousand remge cattle, six thousand hogs and
three hundred horses. At the four feed yards up to twenty-five thousand sheep and
four thousand cattle were fattened each year,

Some of W.J.'s foremen were George T. Steples Ray Thompsen, Louis Felt, Henry
Thempson, Jack Elair, Horace Turner, Jim Allen and iielen Tracy.

1t would be note worthy to mention Aaron Tracy, a former Presidert of Weber
Acadeny of Ugden, while going to school herded sheep for Father. Asron was a brother
to Helan Tracy. Helan did & lot of carpenter work for Dad after we bought the ALf
Fritichett farm:at Eden. Helan was an expert in building hay derikes.

Hother, Margie Robins, & niece to W.J.'s second wife Annie Thompson, my Grand-
mother:Hosabelle!s sister, worked in the W.J. Lindsay home for about four years.

W.J. told mother he had a fine young fellow working for him with the sheep outfit.
He was was always talking George Staples, George Staples. He finely brought George
home and introduced him to Margie Robins, my Mother. The result after a courtship
on horse back and in the horse and buggy they were married 20 Dec 1v11 1in the
Salt Lake Temple.

L remember Mother telling about her first surmer of married life livang in a
sheep wagon at the Jones Cebin the summer head querters for the sheep ocutfit.

Some of my serltest recollections 1s livang in asheep wagen &t the Jones Cabin
in the summer and riding with Father end Mother through the mountains visitang
the several sheep camps. L can remerber riding & horse named Uld Hogup with a
pack saddle and a blanket folded for & seat. Mother told of the many trips she
took with Father horse back. Father carried Claude on 2 pillov over the horn of
the saddle on several trips. We have & picture of one of these trips ss Claude
and L grew older,

Welter J. landsay depended on George T. Staples a great desl giving him the
responsibality ef the sheep operation.

The spring of 1981 Erma and L visited Wells Hobins at Seipap, and taped the
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conservation. Wells was 92 and working in his garden and his mind was shaerp as
as ever. He had worked for W.J. Lindsay durning his youth and wes well sequainted
with Father, being about the same age. Wells talked about Father end his association
with him. Father was with the sheep and Wells wes herding cattle at the Four Mile
Hanh::in Cache Valley. Wells lived in & sheep wagon and had a large tent to stable
his horses in, His job was to watch for timber rustlers, watch the machinery ettthe
rench and keep the cattle from drifting off their range.

W.ds stayed wath Wells occesionally on overmight trips and gave him some good
advice about life, W.J. "Don't lend & good friend money because he will try to
aviod you. Never let a man quit work as an enemy; if you have to fire him, give
him a bomus and wish him well.® Wells said W. J. was a plunger and Lew Eitton was
very conservative.

Father had this seme philesophy about men, and in the forty years he worked for
and managed the sheep for Lindsay-Eatton end was Supertent for the Lindsey Lend
and Livestoeck Compeny, later the Bar-B- Compeny,he hired many men and had tp=fire
some, but 1 don't think he had any enemies.

Wells Hobins spoke wery highley of Father saying he wvas & good worker end tended
to business. He said W. J. and Lou Bitton didn't seem to pay muech attention to
the sheep outfit and left it all to George Steples to take care of. He knew the
sheep, the range, the men and how to handle them, and they trusted hiﬁ. Wells
gaid he had never met a more accomidating,smooth aeting, good natured honest mentthon
George Staples. He always rode good horses and took good care of them. Wells related
an incident when Father was vo.5 cooking dinner om the open fire when his horse, &
beautiful grey gildenm he thought the world of, ceme upitoithe camp fire; Father
flaped a small stick to scare him away, but the stick hat the horse in one eye
ceusing ham to become blind in this eye. Wells commented on how badly Father felt

ebout thais , but he still kept him as one of his favorite horses.

Wells alsc commented on his knowing Asron Tracy, who become President of Weber
college after putting himself through college by herding sheen for Father. Wells

would visit Aarcn over im the La Flatta mine country where he was herding sheep.

Wells also commented sbout his conservations with Father about his familvy.
6
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Grendfather James Tunis who hever rermarried after his wife Ruthetta died was

buying & farm near Idaho Falls and Father was sending most of his check to help
pey for the feru. Wells saad Father wes still sending money to be applied on the
note after he was married. 1 can remember as a youngster after Father had bought
our farm {rom ALf Fritiichet thet Grandfather lost his farm in ldaho. Lee and

the girls were living with Grandfether at this time. Wells said they wereésevident-
ally living 2 little high and when Father stopred sending money they lost the
ferm. 1 can remember a Pieno thet was shipped by reil from idaho Falls to Zden.

L ecen remember Mother saying that was 21l Father got for the money he put in that
farm. 1 never did hear Father talk about it. L understand Eugene Stevenseon who
merried Fathers older sister Lauretta Lllen bought the farm from Grendfather Tunis,
but feiled to pay fer it.

1 can remember some of the evenis in Fathers life he had related to his fremily
while sitting around the coal heater in the front room of our Eden Hench Heme..
His bout wath mountain fever while on the Neveada Desert. His hospital bed wes
in a sheep wagon cemp. The sheep herders didn*t think he would ever make it.

The time & sheep camp tipped over on him while trying to keep it upright in the
long and hazerdous pull up the Danish Dug Way ain Mautue leadang to Cache County
énd the summer renge. UL the might Fether wes sitting in the hHotel at relton when
sopeone poked & rifle through the window and shot & men sitting seross the room.
The killer was never found.

Fathers life never seemed to be dull, Clyde W.. Laindsay asz . have mentioned ih
his writings tells severl stories including George Staples in them. [ will
relete some of the stories as Clyde tells them. L cen remember him terling many of
these stories, Clyde's account would be more accurete as he was about the seme
age as Father and they were both there.

In the winter of 1901-02 Pather was with three herds, ten thousend ewes of
landssy-bBittons on the nelton deseret known as Hogup mountain when they becore
snowed in, Father telegrephed W. J.. Lindsay about thear plight. "Snowed in,no

relief in sight, must have corn". W. J. sent his som Clyde with a railrocad car

of corn %o Kelton. Father met tre train wath a Four Horse team and sleigh.
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They left kelton sbout 4' @ clock FM loaded with fifty bags of corn hesded for
the first herd sbout thirty miles away over & treachorus roed. 1t was bitter cold
30% below zerc. They wanted to get the feed to tie sheep as soocn as possible.

It was a long trip; they had to take turns running behind the sleigh to keep from
freezing to death. The lest ten miles were up hill and slow going, Jimmie Landa,
the Basco herder heard them comang and came out to met them. He drove the last
helf mile and insisted Qlyde and Father welk and keep moving as they were hﬂcuﬁlng
drosey. Arriving et camp Jimmie blanketed the steaming horses and then helped
Blyda and Father thaw out. He wouldn't let them go in the werm camp until they
hed rubbed their hands, feet and faces with smow for about one half hour. Jimmie
kept them covered with quilts and blanket-and helped rub them until they eould
feel cireulation, then he let them go into the warm camp, To Jimmie the Basco,
Clyde and Father were grateful beecause he probably seved them from frozen feet,
hends end ears:s.

Another near fatel tragedy was in Ugden Canyon. W.J. Lindsay, George Stanles,

Jim Thempson and Jinzie the Besco were riding in the Cabouse behind ten car loads
of lembs hesded for Ugden rail road yard and then on to the Hastern market.

Wear the mouth of the canyon the grede of the railroad becomes steep and full of
curves. The brakes on the electric motor car that pulled the train failed and

the train rolled down the cenyon picking up speed. What seemed to be a sure tradgey
ended up as & miracle, The train was traveling st a2 unbelieveable speed when the
three last cars jumped the track, but still remsined upright end hitched to the
train. These last three cars dragged aleng ripping up the ties and road bed for
some distnnce before the train eame to a stop due to the resistance of the dregging
CAI'S.

It was not always troublescme times, there wes time for fun. The bears in the
Jones Cabin and LaFlata mine eountry were killing sheep quite often. Une night a
bear ceme to the camp where Father and Clyde Lindsey were staying and ate some
of the nutton they had hung in & tree. Lt was a custom to hang the mution in a

& tree at night and let it cool and then wrap 1t in the bed roll durning the day.

Thas method kept the mest cool and fresh. The besr stood on his hind feet and ate
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whaet meat he wanted, Father and Clyde knew Mr bear would be back the next night
for more meat so they dug a pit under the spot the meat would hang,covered it with
branches, leaves and top se0il and got ready for Mr. bear

Sure encugh durning the night he returned, and as he reached uv for the rutton
fell into the deep hole. The next morning they decided to tie the bear up and haul
him on & horse over to Jones Cabin and make & cage for him. The besr wes & half
grown cinnemon, weighing-about one hundred seventy five pounds. Lt was a hassel
to get two ropes on him and stretched out so they could tie his legs end put &
canvas over his head so he couldn'tibite. They wrapped him in & horse blanket and
tried to load ham on a mule. The mule refused to let such a thing be:leaded on
his back. They had to go over to another cemp end get Uld Buck & very gentle horse
who after being blind folded let them load the beer on his back, 1t toock & lot of
tying to the pack saddle to make the bear secure for the trip to Jones Cabin.

After erriving at the cabin where there was & cool spring, they built = cage out
of green .usking Aspen logs. Lt took a lot of work, but was & thrill when they
turned the beer loose into the eage. They kept him that surrer at the cabin
for show.

hnother incedent happend with &-besr one day as W. J. , his son Clyde snd Father
were riding in the La Plate miming country and caught sight of a besr across &
canyon about one quarter of a mile away. Clyde and Father wanted to go efter the
bear. W. J. said he would stay there and direet them as they ecrossed the ecanyon
into the brush. Clyde and Father soon spotted the bear and approached it from
two directions. When they got close the bear stopped eating berries and stood
up on his hind legs to look around and seeing his plight plunged down through the
brush with Father and Clyde after him. When & bear gets crowded in a chase he
usually boundsippea.tree: & that:-igojust whatithiscbear:did. After hewing treed
the bear they discovered they didn't have a gun with them. Clyde stayed to hold
*he bear up the tree while Father rushed back to cemp for & gun. He returned in
about fifteen :mimutes just as W. J. caught up. A good shot right between the eyes
brought the bear tumbling dewn out of the tree. W. J. said "this beats all, you

Euys munting bear without a gun". Clyde indicated he and Fether were about seventeen

years old at this time. g



1 cen not resist relating an incident simuler to this that haprened many yeers

later in the same erea, My brother Claude Steples and Urin ramber were riding
through this ares locking for caitle when they came upon & bear in a trap one
of the sheep herders had set. Claude could remember the story Father hed told
about his venture with a bear in this area. So Clsude and Orin deeided to heul
the beer on & pack horse to Jones Cabin. You can imagine how spooked the horses
were while Clzude snd Urin got two ropes on the bear so they could stretch him
out, They rmade a2 muzzle out of wire tyving his meuth shut. You eecn z2lso imagine
the time they had in getfing the bear on & paex horse they berrowed from cne of
the sheep herders. They had to tie the horse up about as much as they did the
besr to get him to let them load such a odd peck. They got him to Jones Cabin
elright and put & chain around his neck and turned hin loose at the large horse
wetering trough. The bear climbed into the trough to cool off frem the long hot
ride, nis breathing hed been restricted from the wire around his nose, The bear
never did get out of the water end died shortley after.

L hesrd about this escapade znd with my young son Max drove up to Jones Cebin
to see the beer. Cleude and urin were not there, they were cut riding the renge
80 all we got to see was the besr hide stretched out on the well of the cebin.

A few years previcus to this, Father and 1 hunted bear wath Matt and Biglow
Browning in the LaFlatte country. Father was the guide knowing the country well
and winere the bear wszllows were. This was beautiful country, steep canyons, thick
timber, plenty of water eand berries. We sew besr accaesionelly but could never get
a good shot. We could find the bear wallows in the thick timber nesr a wet spot
or a spring, but the bear would get out ahead of us.

Another bear story as. recorded by Clyde Lindsay end ineluding Father was when
sutomobiles first ceme to Ugden. Carl Zeemer, a friend of the landary famaly ecame
over to tne landsay home to show off his Fathers new Stanley Stecmer, The Lindsay
boys pot a thrill end a scare of their lives as Carl showed off his Dad's new car
by drivang tharty five miles per hour snd drove straight for a tree just barley

missing it to give his riders a thrall. It was weard feeling going so fast after

being used to riding in a korse drowm rig. Clyde vowed to get even with Carl.
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A few weeks later Clyde plenned svvendeits; camping:tripiwitniFather 1nethe
mountsins and asked Carl to go =long. Carl, a city boy was excited about the trip.

After raiding into the haigh mountains they made camp by the trail in a timber
covered canyon, Clyde n.nd Fether hed planned their strztegy. They eesually mentioned
that there were besrs in this area and they prowled arcund et night sometimes, but
there was nothing teo fear 2f you laid right still if one ceme by. After a luscious
meal they turned in for beddshortly after dark. Carls bed was at the beek of the
tent, Clyde in the middle end Father near the tent door. When Carl had fallen adleep,
Father eased out of bed and quately slipped away a short distance from the tent.
He started creckling the brush..That wes & signel for Clyde to ewaken Carl, asking
him if he eculd hear that, Carl said "yes whet is it?" Clyde whispered "L bet it's
& bear, lie right still. Carl wes breathing hard &s the noise came eloser. By then
Father had reached the tent growling like & bear &cscratched on the wall of the
tent. Clyde jumped up yelling "a bear a bear let's run". Clyde flew out of the tent
and dashed down the trail waith Caerl right on his heels. Father fellewed ripht behaind
them st1ll growling. Carl soon passed Clyde so Father and Clude knew thear prank
had worked, so stopped and started to laugh. When they ecelled te Carl thet 1t was
only & prank, he couldn't hear them because he wes to far down the canyon running
for has life, Then (lyde end Fether reelized the sefiousness of thear pramk, Carl
was bere footed and undressed. They went beex and dressed and started dowm the
canyon calling and looking for Carl. They found him about 4 mile down the cenyon
perched in & queking espen tree brused and bleeding and crying. They were then
sorry for their prenk.

Father during his life time had many experiences with beers, mountain lions,
bob cats and coyotes, they are 211 mortal enemies to sheep and catile men.
Father told of & old female bear and her two cubs at night getting into & herd
of ewes znd lombs on the bed ground end killed forty heed. after the old bear
ripped open the ewes the cubs would lick up the ewes milk., The sheep are irained
not to lesve the bed ground at might so & bear in the middle of the herd hed a
picnic. Father related several stories of meeting & bear with her cubs on the trail

in dense timber. The mother bear usually stands up on her hand legs and shows her
1



teeth snd growls warming you to get out of the way. 1t's no trouble to pet out of

the way because your horse is spocked and ready to retreat.

Rading through the mountains at night scretires becomes rether scarey, Father
told of riding up & cenyon in the dark when his horse snorts and whirls back down
the treil. The horse refuses to proceed up the trail so Father nudges him up the
mountain side and around what wes frightening the horse, and goes on his way.

The coyote is 2 vicious killer among sheep, he bites and tears, but makes & sport
of killang bty getiting the sheep to run and then runs up along side grebaing the
sheep by the throat and setting all fours cutting the throat and fliping the sheep
end over end. L have seen coyotes do this on the range and in the pastures. A shot
from & gun usually sceres them away for & short pericd.

Father was not only knowledgeable ebout the Livestock end Ranching business,
but he understood men, their feelings and desires. It was a pleasure for me to
work with ham end for him. When L greduated from high school May 1931 ,Father
wanted me to be the truck driver for the Lindsay Land & Livestock company, later
named the Bar B Company. He was the Superintindent of the company and I wes happy
to work for my Father, starting out at fifty dollars per month and board. When
Claude graduated from high school he also went to work for the Ber B Company with
the cattle. Matt Erowning wanted to learn the Livestock and Ranching business;
Cleude and L were about the seme age as Matt so we learned right along with Him,

Whern Father became Superintendant of the company he received two hundred twenty
five dollars per month end board and was furnished a Buick coupe and gas and car
maintence. be had been receavang one hundred twenty five per month as an adviser.

Chet Welker who proceeded Father was peid six hundred per month, but that wes
beferethe great depression of 1929-30.

The spring of 1931 L started working for Father snd the wanter of 1931=32 was
one of the hardest wainters on record. Erowmings had three herds of sheep on the
Nevada desert and four herds on the Promotory desert. L treveled with Father
over the seme routes in a new truck that he had traveled horse back with team

and wegon. The hard winter, deep snow and extremly cold weather kept me busy

hauling corn and supplies to the snow bound sieep. Father went:with me on many
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of these trips and we slept i1n the sheep camps with the herders and camp movers,
L put one tail gete of the truck next to the camp bunk spanning the cemp and slept re |
close to the stove and Father slept with the herder and cemp mover. Three in a bed
was rather crowded. une night Father snd I slept in the back of the truck becsuse

we had an extra man, a relief herder with us. Lt dropped down to 30 degrees zero
that night and the next mornming we had to pull the truck waith the camp teem to

get it started, Beang out in the wilderness a great deal required keeping the truck
-in tip top shepe.

We shoveled tons of snow thet winter getiing through the snow drifts and out from
being stuck. We were snowded in for two days at one sheep camp beczuse of the high
winds with a foot of new snow on top of the already deep snow. Lt was a terrible
blizard making it impossible to see or move. The second day the sunccames ond &vevery
thing was so white and bright you could't even see where the road was,., We made
the first tracks along the haghway and the only way L could tell the loecation
of the road was by judging the distence it was from the telephone poles.

it was about fifty miles to Wendover end we didnt meet any treffic until about
twenty miles west of Wendover. The treffic was stelled there because the ecuts for
the road through the hills were driffed full of snow. They were weiting for =
snow blower from Salt lake City to open the cuts. Father sard lets go up the ridge
and around the cuts. This we did with much shoveling through the barrow pits.

The Browning company haed furnished a new 1931 one and one helf ton Reo Speed
Wagon truck wath over sized tires and single wheels wath heavy duty chains. That
wes a8 real good truck and could reeily buek the snow.. We made 1t into Wendover
to the railroad hotel just before dark but Fether hed become snow blind from being
in the braight sun and snow all day. 1 had te lead him to the hotel. YWe packed his
eyes with wet tes lesves that night . The next morming he eould see ag:iin, so
bought some dark glasses, and we headed for Eden and more feed.

The next day we headed for Fromotory to check on the sheep and catile there,

The road on Fronotory pass was closed and the railrosd was closed on the pass also

because two engines were trying to open the tracks and the:bhead engine jumped
the trackes end tapped over killing the engineer.
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We had to ride horse back from Connor Springs Ranch to Browns Ranch about twenty

five miles. This wes & long cold ride and half of the distance was through deep snow.

There were two herds of sheep snowed in on the north end of Promotery and Hozel
flats, Father had the camp mover cut a buge ceder tree and drag i1t through the snow
with the camp tesm making a road for the sheep to fellow. The snow wes to deep for
the sheep tp travel without some help. The sheer were moved to Browns Ranch where
there was stacked wild hay and less snow. Father always kept an old house at Rogel
Healroad Station full of corn just for these kinds of emergencies.

This was the winter that most of the wild horses died from starvation on the
Fromotory Mountsin range and many in Nevada,

The next few days-we were beck in Nevada with more corn for the snowded in sheep
there. 1 couldnt. haul corn fast enough by truck to the Kevads herds so Father had
a railroad cer full of corn shipped to Windover and put on & siding so we could get
1t to the sheep from there. Many sheep men begped Father for some of that corn
because their sheep were dying from lack of feed. Fether let them have what he
could spare. When we left the railroad loaded with corn zbout eight or ten small
trucks fallowed us as we broke & road through the deep snow out on the desert.

The experiences L had wath Father have become more than priceless over the years.
He was = great teacher.

Father homesteaded a section of land, six hundred forty scres while working for
Brownings. Fart of thet homesteed was at the mouth of Ceertsen Canyon and the rest
on top of the mountain in Wellsville Canyon near the now Powder Mountain skii
resort, We made a road pood enough to drive our cer ur to the eabin et the mouth
of Geertsen Canyon. We had some good times et that ceban while improving up eon
this homestesad.

Father gave his three children a good fineneisl start in lif'e by heving & family
livestoe: operstion beceuse of the homestead and his ferm. Brownings were very good
in alloving us te de this while working for them, but we did it after hours.

Mother was very supportative in this project even though we were sleeping iniwild
country..

Soon after Father accepted the Superintendent job for Browmings he had rmany
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challenges end problems to sclve. in the transaetion of BErownings foreclesing on
on Walter J. lLindsay and taking over the large operation there was much disaray
and mn.ﬁy people took adventage of this, People were cutting their timber, turnming
cattle end horses onto their range snd sheep men feeding over their property lines.

Father was well scqueinted with these people and friemnds to many. While working
as an advigser to Brownings he solved the problems of people turning their catile on
the Zden range. Hurum Stellings a good friend of our family was one of the larger
Hden Ranchers who let his cattle run on Brownings range. Father solved this probler
vith no 111 feelings. He helped Hyrums son James file for & homestesd on the west
mountezins where they run their eattle for years after that. The cattle men justified
themselves for turning their eattle on the Browning renge because there wes govern-—
ment sections scattered through out the range, but they failed to recognize thet
Wo. J. Lindsey hed tuilt his empire by buying up all the ground that had weter on
it, thus controlling 211 the land.

1t was gore difficult in solving the problems et other renches. Tom Davis let
his cattle range from his kast side of Promotory mountain ranch over to the west
gide and down onto the Erowns Raneh({uld Fort) an exeellant winter range and medows.
1t took severel cowboys, tut the cattle were rounded up and pushed back onto their
own range, Father explained the situsation to Tom Davis and things eventually
smoothed out end Devis kept his cows home.

Lt woan't so easy with the boys from Randoff, they threatened Father when their
cattle were pushed back. They found out Father didn't seare very easily so they
kept their cattle on their own range.

The most diffienlt situation was getting the horses and cattle offthe Rogzel flats.
Years ago wild horses had roamed the flats, but the herd wanter of 1Y31-2 ended

the wild horses on the flats and in the Promotory mountains, they died from sisr—
vation, and what few survived were captured or shot.

Severel dry farm ranchers turned their horses out on the Hazel flats, but lew
Whitiker owned the larger herd and scme cattle that grazed on Hozel.

The time was set and a huge roundup was made and the horses and cattle were

driven to Lew Whitikers ranch with & notice through the sheriff to keep them off.
15
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Lew Whitiker was unhappy about this and filed a law suite aganist Hrownings.
He lost the suite so that was the end of horses on the Rozel flats.

It amazed me that years later L had occasion to be envolved with these men and
they had no antimosity to ward Father.

L had the privilege of going with Father to buy and measure hay for the company.
Durning the ten year period 1931 to 1941 he bought and measured thousands of tons
of hay through out the Fenrose, Thatcher,boswell,Trementon snd Corine ares,

Father carried a company cheek book znd paid for the hay as hermessdured it. Hes
geve advance payments to those who needed it until the hay had becore settled in
the stack for measurerent..

Fart of my job helping Fether, besides running the commissary was meking up the
monthly pay roll to send to the office.. 1t was usually for seventy five men mostly
sheep herders, cowboys and ranch operators. During;theelambing period and haying
time the payroll wes one hundred fifty men. Fether usually wrote pay checks for
the part time workers.

1t was interesting to me whal happened during thet ten years period. The depression
was on during 1931 and money wes reelly tight, it was almost impossible to barrow
money . Cattle sold for four cents a pound for fet steers and lambs about six cents.
The goverrment paid tweniy dollars per head for cows but they had to be destroyed.

Father run a tight operation and Marriner Erowning said they kept out of the red
and showed & small profit,. instead of losing money &s durning Chet Walkers time.

During Fathers operation of the company he didn't use & foreman which eliminated
nv_erh?ad and much jealously. Matt Browning didn't liBe sheep and wanted to run just
ca..t.‘t.{é. Father pointed out to him that 1t was necessary to run sheep to more fully
utilize all of the renge Sheep could renge into the steep canyons end feed for =
couple of days bafore coming into water,. Cattle never grazed these hard to reaseh
places. lt was an old time notion sheep and ecattle were not conmpmtable on the ranpe.
This notion goes back to the old days of the west when cattle and sheen men were
at wvar waith other, many losing thear lives. During the peried Father supervised
the company, Hrownings run five thousend catile and about tharty thousend sheep.

1t happened the sprang of 1941; Marriner and Matt Browming felt Matt wes
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experienced enocugh to run the company themselves, 3o Father was relieved of his
Jjob wath no Compensation for over forty yeers service except the worn out cempany
car he drove. Marriper had promised Father and mentioned it several times that he
would set him up on & nmiee ranch, with & cow and celf operation when it become time
for him to retire. This didnt happen and Marriner asked Fether to sell him our
homestead, six hundred forty acres for five thousend dollars. : traed to persuade
Father not to sell it but he did with ne strings attached. This lend is worth over
one querter million dellzrs tedey as some of 1t adjeins the Powder Yountein

skii resort.

1t was indeed & blow to Father after forty years of service in helping to build
that empire, werking for Lewis Bitton , Walter J lindsay and Brownings. He felt
somewhat like W. J. Lindsay when Brownings foreclosed on haim,

L lost my job also at the same time, but hed bought thirty acres and a home in
tden from Louis Jones, just across the road frem the old W. J. Lindsay summer home
where 1 wes born. Our farm and Fethers was less than one mile apert snd 1 slso
owned forty acres at Penrose , Box Elder County, but sold 1t a few years later.

Father rented a pasture west of Brigham City for a few years and rsised cattle.
We hed & nice two horse trailer built which came in handy. We worked together
helping each other. 1 bought a small Oliver tractor with a seven foot mower which
really mowed hay, but 1 couldn't get & good plow due to the war,

As soon as tractors were available Father bought a lerge Oliver tractor with
agood heng on plow. When the desler delivered it Father wes really proud of his
new iron horse. I drove it to open up a pirece of land he wanted plowed. After a
few rounds 1 turned it over to Father and he made 2 trip up the field and back,
but when 1t was time to turn around he pulled the lever and the plows came up out
of the ground but there wasn't much room to turn nesr the corral and one wheel
run over the culiepschker thet was parked near the fence. The trector bounced,
which excited Father, and he started to yell "woe, woe" pulling back on the steering
wheel. 1 about split laughing, but was no laughing matter to Fether. He soon got
the tractor under control and went to plowing.

L got & job through Cival Serviee drivang truck for the govermment while the
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Utzh General Army Depot was beang built, but continued operating my ferm and
vorking with Father on Ssturdeys and after work.

My brother Claude continued working for Mett Erowning &s cattle foremen, Matt
had & foreman for every phase of the business, & complete about face from the way
Father operated the company. They sold all the sheep and boupht several cattle
ranches i1n Mentens and sterted wheat dry farming on Promotory and Gache Valley,
They bought so much machinery they had to have 2 full time mechanic and helpers to
keep it operating. Mett later put Claude in charge of their huge operation.

Father Couldn't get the Browming Hanch out of his systen snd rede on the cattle
round ups severcl times. He developed 2 rough spot under his ear whiech bothered
him because he pieked and rubbed i1t a lot. He finelly went to Dr. Jr. Hieh who
burned 1t with an electric néedle. The rough spot went awey but a lump soorn formed.
Dr. Hich opersted end rewoved the lump but the inecision failed to heal, the Doctor
implented seme radium seeds in the glend of his neek. Father suffered terribley [rom
radiation treatment throughout the swmer. He had been operated on that spring.
While this was going on he rut has Hanch up for sale end that fall =old 1t to
Mr Anderson from 3alt Lexe City who had boupght e large treet of lend in Huntsvalle,

He received tharty thouscnd dellars for about three hundred twenty acred which
wes o fair price at that time. Hobert H. Hinkley presently owns the 0ld Homestead
end mede it into the Hden Fony lLanch.

Fether and lother moved to Ugden that fall giving up the Hanehang business,. His
feet and ankles had begun to swell and he had & hard time getiing his cowboy boots
on. He didn't own a pair of shoes, only & pair of laced boot shoes for dress.,

Late thet fell after Thanksgiving a heavy snow storm came, & signal to make a
last back ride into the mounteins looking for catile that had been missed on the
round un. Father wented to go with Crook Teylor who was who was meking thas last
round up from the Eden Aanch. L'm sure he figured this would be his last rade.

L cen see why Father wanted to make this ride beecouse 1 have been with har in the
pest on some of these trips searching for stranded cattle. The snow 1s deep and

the goang slow, but the objective is to ride teo the highest ridges and peaks,

The wview 18 spectactular,everything completly white and with a pair of field glasses
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one c&n see any traecks that maight heve been made in the fresh snow, There i1s a
peak at the heed of the right hend of CGeertsen Canyon whers one oh a cleer day can
see into four states, Utah , Whyoming, Nevads and 1daho.

Father wanted to take this last view of the vest range of mountains that had been
his home for so many yeers. They brought two yearling steers home that had been
stranded in the deep snow at the head of Geertsen canyon.

That was Fathers last ride, he came home tired end never left the house after that.
He soon become bed radden and weak. Mother stayed at his side and dressed the sore
end removed the flem from his throat,

L stopped in after work on my way home to the Valley each night for the last couple
of months. Father never complained and always had & positive outlock. He said that
when Spring comes and 1 cen get my feet on the green grass 1'1]1 be alraght. Dr.
fach mede regular visits to the apartment, 2330 /dams av. Ugden Uteh.

Une of the tender mements 1 hed was one evenming a2s 1 stopped in after work Father
psked if L would administer to him. This was the best thing L wes ever able %o do
for Father in my life.

He soon passed away &t his spertment in upgden 8 &pril 1949, the conelusion of
the life of a great and noble man.

Merriner and Matt Browning sent a signed tribute to Mother for the funeral.

" George Tunis Staples feithful associate of J. Ms & M, 5. Hrowning company
has passed on to his well earned rest and reward, and we who have been assoclated
with him for so many years desire to acknowledge his worth and pay honor toe his
MEROIY «

Throughout the yeers we have come to know erd velue haghly his sterling qualities
of wpright manhood, He was an honest man, honest with himself and with all others.
He did not seek after material wealth or specialized knowledge through higher
educztion, but rather he sought and found those everlesting, satifying:inner:riches
which are gained through upright liwing and consideration of the rights of otihers
and their welfare. He was always appreciative of kindress end fovers bestowed upon
hic and sought ways in which te reciprocate.

His religion wes epitomized by his honesty, sincerity and consideration of others.
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He anew right from wrong and his wiole life wes based upon right without display
by way of any cread,

find so wa say to t.ose bereft, we are proud to have krowr him intimatlay snd to
have had the praivilage of calling him friend.

Ard we resolve thet this tribute be spread upon the minutes of the comrany end
that s copy be signed by the Ufficers and sent to his frmily.”

Jeted this Fafth day of May AD Nineteen hundred ard forty nine,

Marriner A Browning, President
attest:
“att S. Browning, Viece President

Father was o loving CGrendfather to his grandehildrer, he was reslly proud when
his farst grandson Max was born and he immediatly bought him & pinto shetlang pony,
end a new gsaddle and bradle. By the tire Max was old eroush to ride the pony, it died
fron paint poisening, so Father let him ride his top cow horse, 0ld Shinner.

Connie was the apple of Fethers eye, his firast grerddaushter, and he wanted the
best for her. Muriels oldest son Gary about the seme epe s Connie, while visiting
from Hewaii helped brand the palves while he and Connie sit on the corall fence,

Wnen Dee care ualong he showed more interest in horses then Max, which = plessed
Fether, He would =it in ocur front reom trying to tecc: Jee to rope his foot,
Jez :nd Kaneai were not old encugh to remember Father.

Honey cen not buy the good name and legacy Father left to his fanily.
L am grateful to Father, George Tunis Steples, and !‘other !'er;ie llobins Staples
for being my perents and the training they gave me and 1y brother Claude srd sister
Muriel and sister-cousin Buby.

Lafe on this beautiful esrth is a period of learning =nd prepereétion for = better
and advenced life to come, and if I fall short it will be ry own fault and negeleet

¥
becsuse Father and Mother gave their children everything necessary to help then
]
obtain a petter laife here and the life to come,
it has been gratefying to write zbout a devoted Fatier.

With deep gratitude and Love

‘@orge Grent Stoplas
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